THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
IN THE COURT OF APPEALS

RECEIVED

FEB 28 2021

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY
COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
JOCELYN NEWMAN, Circuit Court Judge

SC Court of Appeals

Appellate Case No.: 2019-001175

George M. Adams, #181283 Appellant,

v.

Richland County Sheriff's Department . . . Respondent.

FINAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT
PRO SE

Respondent Attorney
ANDREW F. LINDEMANN
ATTORNEY AT LAW
Post Office Box 6923
Columbia, S.C. 29260

APPELLANT PRO SE
George M. Adams
George M. Adams, #181283
Broad River Correction Institution
4460 Broad River Road
Columbia, S.C. 29210

LEGAL MAIL

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. THE LOWER COURT OF COMMON PLEAS ERRORED IN DENYING INCARCERATED INDIGENT PRISONER, (INMATE), VENUE TO PROCEED IN FORMA PAUPERIS FILING, CHALLENGING HIS CONVICTION IN MAGISTRATE COURT.

STATEMENT OF ISSUE ON APPEAL

Did the Lower Court of Common Pleas error in denying indigent prisoner venue to proceed in forma pauperis, challenging his conviction in Magistrate Court?

LEGAL MAIL

STATEMENT OF FACTS

ON April 4, 2019, the Appellant made service through certified mail a summons and Complaint, Affidavit to Proceed in Forma, Notice of Hearing, Request for Hearing, and proposed order to transport to Magistrate Court. (R. p. 1-194).

April 8, 2019, Waverly Magistrate Office Clerk of Court filed stamped inmate's Complaint and Motions. (R. p. 1, 194).

April 18, 2019, inmate's Complaint and Motions were filed in the Court of Common Pleas. (R. p. 1-14).

MAY 28, 2019, Richland County Clerk informed inmate in a he needed to pay the \$150.00 filing fee in order for the Complaint to be filed in the Court, before May 31, 2019, or the case would be dismissed. (R. p. 1, 194).

JUNE 3, 2019, the Judge of Common Pleas Court issued a order dismissing the Complaint for failure to pay the required filing fee. (R. p. 198).

JUNE 18, 2019, inmate's motion for reconsideration was denied. (R. p. 199).

And this Appeal is as follows:

Argument

Appellant Adams Access to File this Action in Magistrate Court, in the County where the most substantial part of the cause of action arose is a fundamental right. South Carolina Magistrate Court Rule 4 (a) establishes jurisdiction, upon Appellant's filing of summons and complaint in Magistrate Court, challenging his conviction. The magistrate judge clerk was required by South Carolina Magistrate Court Rule 5 (c), to submit the motions and affidavit to proceed in forma pauperis to the magistrate judge. Whose ruling was not established, as to whether the complaint, (for the first time), fail within one of the due process exceptions or whether the cause of action concerned a fundamental right that required waiving of the filing fee. (R.P. 198,149). The Appellant would respectfully oppose a question upon the Court. How did the action jurisdiction of filing in the Magistrate Court April 8, 2019, move to the Circuit Court of Common Pleas? South Carolina Magistrate Court Rule 5 (c) gives the Magistrate Judge discretion in this action to make a ruling on the constitutional exception.

Appellant's constitutional right as a prisoner access to the Magistrate Court was denied by the Court of Common Pleas. The Constitution of 1868 has been long since adopted by this Court of Appeals, and is the fundamental law of this state, having as full, force of validity. State v. Bennett, 81 S. Ct. 895 (1961); Boodie v. Connecticut, 91 S. Ct. 780 (1971). The constitutional fundamental principles preserved Appellant's practical right to be heard on the action in Magistrate Court, and limited powers of a higher court, until fully adjudicated in Magistrate Court. The effect of failure to prosecute this action in Magistrate Court, coupled with the Court of Common Pleas order of refusal, was to deny access to the state's Magistrate Court's jurisdiction to prosecute this action. Adams is a prisoner, and for the first time seeking

Access to the Magistrate on this civil action threatening his personal interest of (1) FALSE ARREST (2) FALSE IMPRISONMENT (3) PERJURY AND (4) MALICIOUS PROSECUTION. Bond v. Smith, 97 S. Ct. 491 (1977)!

The Magistrate Court judge remedies on securing Adams access to the court required nine (9) steps of the totality test, the court should have established in determined from the cause of action filed April 8, 2019.

In determination from review without the lower court's appropriate jurisdictional ruling, the court of common pleas judge discretion to deny Adams access to file this action in Magistrate Court was a miscarriage of justice.

Conclusion

For the reasons stated, this court is requested to reverse the judgment of the court of common pleas, and remand to the Magistrate Court this action for filing, processing for final judgment. Preserving the right to appeal if it's necessary to the next court.