THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
In The Court of Appeals

APPEAL FROM RICHLAND COUNTY
Jocelyn Newman, Circuit Court Judge

Appellate Case No. 2019-001175
Case No. 2019-CP-40-2137

RECEIVED
JAN 23 2020
SC Court of Appeals

George M. Adams, #181283, Appellant,

v.

Richland County Sheriff's Department, Respondent.

INITIAL BRIEF OF RESPONDENT

Andrew F. Lindemann
LINDEMANN, DAVIS & HUGHES, P.A.
5 Calendar Court, Suite 202
Post Office Box 6923
Columbia, South Carolina 29260
(803) 881-8920

Counsel for Respondent

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The Appellant George M. Adams is an inmate currently confined within the South Carolina Department of Corrections. The Appellant has filed an appeal from Circuit Court Judge Jocelyn Newman's dismissal of his case for failure to pay the required Circuit Court filing fee. The Appellant's lawsuit alleges claims for false arrest and malicious prosecution against the Richland County Sheriff's Department based on an arrest and prosecution occurring in the 1992-1994 time frame. The lawsuit does not raise any state or federal constitutional claims.

On or about April 8, 2019, the Appellant submitted a Motion and Affidavit to Proceed In Forma Pauperis. That motion was adjudicated by Circuit Court Judge Jocelyn Newman in her role as Chief Administrative Judge. By order filed April 18, 2019, Judge Newman denied in forma pauperis status for this litigation and directed that "Plaintiff shall pay the required filing fee no later than May 31, 2019, or this case will be dismissed." (Order). Thereafter, Judge Newman issued a form order on June 10, 2019, dismissing the action after the Appellant failed to pay the filing fee. That form order states: "Plaintiff had until May 31, 2019 to pay the filing fee or the case would be dismissed. The Clerk's Office has not received any payments as of June 3, 2019." (Form Order). The Plaintiff filed a motion for reconsideration which was denied by Judge Newman by form order filed on June 18, 2019. This appeal follows.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

The standard of review applicable to a circuit court's decision to deny in forma pauperis status and dismiss for failure to pay required filing fees is an abuse of discretion standard. *See generally, Ex Parte: Martin v. State*, 321 S.C. 533, 471 S.E.2d 134 (1995). "An abuse of discretion occurs when the [circuit court's] ruling is based upon an error of law or, when based upon factual conclusions, is without evidentiary support." *Fontaine v. Peitz*, 291 S.C. 536, 354 S.E.2d 565, 566 (1987).

ARGUMENTS

The Appellant George M. Adams has filed an appeal from Circuit Court Judge Jocelyn Newman's dismissal of his case for failure to pay the required Circuit Court filing fee. As indicated, the Appellant's lawsuit alleges claims for false arrest and malicious prosecution against the Richland County Sheriff's Department based on an arrest and prosecution occurring in the 1992-1994 time frame. The lawsuit does not raise any state or federal constitutional claims. Thus, the Appellant's lawsuit is governed by the South Carolina Tort Claims Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-10, *et seq.*

On appeal, based upon the arguments contained in his opening brief, the Appellant appears to challenge the fact that his lawsuit was adjudicated in the Circuit Court rather than in Magistrate's Court. That issue is controlled by S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-100(b), which provides that "[j]urisdiction for any action brought under this chapter is in the circuit court." *See also, Jeter v. South Carolina Department of Transportation*, 369 S.C. 433, 633 S.E.2d 143, 147 (2006) ("Because there is but one circuit court in South Carolina, with uniform subject matter jurisdiction throughout the state, § 15-78-100(b) establishes subject matter jurisdiction for actions arising under the SCTCA in the circuit court throughout the state"). Thus, jurisdiction for an action brought pursuant to the Tort Claims Act must be in the Circuit Court. Accordingly, it was proper that the Appellant's false arrest and malicious prosecution claims against the Sheriff's Department were adjudicated in

the Circuit Court. The Appellant's assignment of error based on jurisdiction lacks merit.

The Appellant also appears to complain that Judge Newman denied his request for in forma pauperis status, thereby requiring him to pay a filing fee in order to proceed with his lawsuit. The Appellant has not, however, shown that Judge Newman abused her discretion or committed an error of law.

In the case of *Ex Parte: Martin v. State*, 321 S.C. 533, 471 S.E.2d 134 (1995), the South Carolina Supreme Court addressed the issue of granting motions to proceed in forma pauperis. The Court explained:

Because of the increasing number of persons seeking to proceed in forma pauperis, we take this opportunity to give guidance as to when it is appropriate to waive filing fees. In the absence of a statutory provision allowing the general waiver of filing fees, we conclude motions to proceed in forma pauperis may only be granted where specifically authorized by statute or required by constitutional provisions.

471 S.E.2d at 134-135. The Supreme Court then reviewed various statutory provisions that require a waiver of filing fees. There is no provision in the Tort Claims Act or elsewhere in the Code of Laws that mandates a waiver of filing fees for bringing a tort claim against a governmental entity. The Supreme Court then offered the following directive:

[W]hen an indigent litigant files a motion to proceed in forma pauperis pursuant to Rule 3(c), and the complaint does not appear to fit within one of the statutory or

constitutional exceptions to the requirement of a filing fee, the clerk of court must submit the motion to a judge for a ruling as to whether the complaint does fit within one of the statutory exceptions or whether the cause of action concerns a fundamental right that requires waiver of the filing fee.

471 S.E.2d at 135.

Later, in *Sullivan v. South Carolina Department of Corrections*, 355 S.C. 437, 586 S.E.2d 124 (2003), the Supreme Court held that a litigant is not entitled to proceed in forma pauperis in *Al-Shabazz* appeals from the Administrative Law Judge Court. The Court further explained:

The General Assembly is the body charged with the power to waive filing fees, and they have not created a waiver for this set of cases. Further, this is not a case involving "fundamental rights," so access to the courts is not constitutionally required in this case. Therefore, Sullivan is not entitled to proceed in forma pauperis on his appeal from the ALJ's dismissal.

586 S.E.2d at 128.

In the present case, there is no statutory provision allowing this Court to waive the payment of a filing fee as required by S.C. Code Ann. § 8-31-210(C)(1), under the circumstances presented by the Appellant. As indicated, the Appellant's lawsuit alleges claims for false arrest and malicious prosecution which are tort claims. The lawsuit does not raise any constitutional claims nor implicate any "fundamental rights." In short, this action does not require or merit the waiver of filing fees. The denial of in forma pauperis status was a correct ruling and should be affirmed.

Additionally, as an additional sustaining ground,¹ it is abundantly clear from the face of the Complaint that the claims are time-barred. The Appellant's claims arise from his arrest and prosecution occurring in the 1992-1994 time frame. The applicable statute of limitations is two years under the Tort Claims Act. See, S.C. Code Ann. § 15-78-110. There is no question that the Appellant's action would be dismissed on the merits based on a statute of limitations defense even if the filing fee had been waived and he could have proceeded. The Respondent thus asserts the statute of limitations as an additional sustaining ground which is clear on the face of the pleadings.

¹ In the case of *I'On v. Town of Mt. Pleasant*, 338 S.C. 406, 526 S.E.2d 716 (2000), the Supreme Court explained that a respondent "may raise on appeal any additional reasons the appellate court should affirm the lower court's ruling, regardless of whether those reasons have been presented to or ruled on by the lower court." 526 S.E.2d at 723. "The appellate court may review respondent's additional reasons and, if convinced it is proper and fair to do so, rely on them or any other reason appearing in the record to affirm the lower court's judgment." *Id.* See also, Rule 220(c), SCACR ("[t]he appellate court may affirm any ruling, order, or judgment upon any ground(s) appearing in the record"); Rule 207(b)(2), SCACR ("[r]espondent's brief may also contain argument asking the court to affirm for any ground appearing on the record as provided by Rule 220(c)").

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing discussion and analysis, the Respondent Richland County Sheriff's Department respectfully requests that this Court affirm the orders issued by Circuit Court Judge Jocelyn Newman denying in forma pauperis status to the Appellant and dismissing his lawsuit for failure to pay the required filing fees.